From: Solstice AK

Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 3:49 PM
To: Solstice AK
Subject: Seward Airport Update: Scoping Complete, Scoping Report Online, Alternative Selected

Thank you for your continued interest in the Seward Airport Improvement Project. You are receiving this email as a
project update to inform you that project scoping is complete, the scoping report is now online, and a preferred build
alternative has been selected.

The Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF) completed Phase |. Project Scoping. The Seward
Airport Improvements Scoping Report, summarizing the project background (scope, project history, purpose and need,
project team); existing conditions; aviation activity and forecast; facility requirements; project alternatives; and
environmental conditions is available on the project website Document Library online at
www.dot.state.ak.us/creg/sewardairport/documents.shtml. Alternative 2.2 was selected as the preferred build
alternative for this project. A position paper summarizing selection of this alternative is available on the project website
at www.dot.state.ak.us/creg/sewardairport/documents/Position-Paper.pdf.

DOT&PF has started Phase Il. Environmental Documentation. PDC Inc. Engineers, in conjunction with DOT&PF, is
preparing the Environmental Assessment for the project. Please check the project website Current Events page at
www.dot.state.ak.us/creg/sewardairport/current events.shtml for updates.

For more information, contact Barbara Beaton, P.E., Project Manager, DOT&PF, at barbara.beaton@alaska.gov or
telephone at 907-269-0617 or Robin Reich, Public Involvement, Solstice Alaska Consulting, Inc. at robin@solsticeak.com
or 907-929-5960.

Solstice Alaska Consulting, Inc.

2607 Fairbanks Street, Suite B, Anchorage, AK 99503
907-929-5960 | solsticeak@solsticeak.com
www.solsticeak.com

L

A-40



Solstice AK

From: Brad Snowden <brad@seward.net>
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2017 4:10 PM
To: Solstice AK

Subject: Sewards Future

Attachments: Airport Runway.jpg

Don Young told me he would help if the City of Seward would simply send him a letter asking for it.
Brad Snowden
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THE WINTER

If you find interest in my findings and Alaska Airlines. Princess Cruises and Holland America’s response to using
Seward just ask!

Thank you
Brad S.

PS; Brad Snowden

Hotel Seward
221 5™ Avenue, Seward Alaska

Airport Expansion

November 1, 2004
Report to the people of Seward

On Friday, October 29, 2004, at 2:00 pm, a meeting was held at Alaska Airlines Corporate Office, Seattle, WA. In
attendance at the meeting were:

Don Garvett, Vice President, Alaska Airlnes

Charlie Ball, President Princess Tours

David E Beagle, Vice President Holland America

Brad Walker, Director Leisure Marketing, Alaska Airlines
2
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Brad Snowden, Owner/Manager Hotel Seward

Telephonic Attendees:
Vanta Shafer, Seward Mayor
Phil Shealy, Seward City Manager
Brad Garland, FAA/Airports
Mark Mayo, Transportation Planner, State Of Alaska
Todd VanHove, Area Planner, DOT, State Of Alaska Airport Design

Subject discussed was the potential of Alaska Airlines flying their jets and landing in Seward, for the purpose of
transporting tour ship passangers.

e Don Garvett stated that Alaska Airlines would haul passengers out of Seward if there were an airport that
could handle their jets.

Chralie Ball and Dave Beagle would use that airport to haul their passengers if the cost was comparable
to Anchorage or less.

Brad Garland expressed support.

Vanta Shafer felt that Seward would support this airport.
Todd Vanhove stated that there would be some difficulties.
a) The physical characteristics of the airport.

b) Establishing the importance of the expansion to rise up on the State’s list of airport projects.

In conclusion, I find that if Seward would like to see continued cruise ship dockings in Seward. And numerous
possibilities that it would be in Seward’s best interest to pursue this further.

Sincerely,

Brad Snowden
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Email Received from Jerry Olive on October 5, 2017
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From: gci <jolive@gci.net>

Sent: Sunday, December 10, 2017 9:33 AM
To: Solstice AK
Subject: Re: Seward Airport Improvements feedback

| would like to know specifically what the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service had to say concerning this project. Thank

you. Can you also please provide specific names of people from this agency whom | may contact for they stand on this
issue. Thanks
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Birds that have or currently nest in the airport pond area are: Northern Pintail, Gadwall, Mallard, American
Wigeon, Green-winged Teal, Savanna Sparrow, Lapland Longspur, Semi-palmated Plovers, Least Sandpipers,
Common Snipe, Greater Yellowlegs, warblers, Great Horned Owl, and Bald Eagle

Not only is this area and important habitat for wildlife but it is also a very important migration stop over for
many species of birds from around the world of which their numbers are in decline.

Banded Dusky Canada Geese have been spotted here along with a Banded/Flagged Bar-Tailed Godwit from
New Zealand and Flagged and Banded Western Sandpiper from Chile!

Many species of shorebirds utilize this area along with Sandhill Cranes this past spring there was a fallout
(when weather conditions drastically change during migration forcing birds to be grounded) over 1100 Sandhill
Cranes, Hudsonian Godwits, Bar-tailed Godwits, Cackling Geese, Greater white-fronted, Whimbrel, Black-
bellied plovers, Snow Geese and any species of songbirds were seen at the pond area. If this land was not their
these birds most likely would have perished as some of the birds remained grounded for up to seven days.

There is also a large family group of Trumpeter Swans that nest nearby and each year as soon as their cygnets
can fly they move them to the airport ponds to feed and continue to grow.

It is also key to know that these birds can be a major hazard to aircraft. If a runway is built in the only suitable
habitat in this migration corridor birds will have no where to land to refuel and will become large displace
flying hazards.

On top of the wildlife concerns is the hydrology of the area. Winter and summer are very different in this area;
flooding, extreme high tides, surf and ice build up push water past the ponds, overflowing the sloughs and
southern field each winter. A run way that extends out into and past the pond would be destroyed in a matter of
years. A through environmental assessment needs to be conducted in the each of the seasons especially the
Spring and Winter.

I am surprised at how few public comments were submitted. I believe people have not been properly informed
of this project and its implications. I would speculate that more recreational users visit the airport, ponds and
beaches then pilots, and if the hunters, dog walkers, birders, beach combers ect new about this project ("Airport
Improvements" vs Habitat loss and recreational area loss) you would have more input,

Its really is a special area to "Sewardites" and other Alaskans, it is the only remaining inter-tidal wetlands in
Resurrection Bay.

If there is any other information I can give you I will be happy to help.
Thank you for reading my response and taking the time to research this project.

Tasha
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Stakeholder Working Group Meeting #4
Correspondence and Documentation
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SWG Meeting Summary, 10/2/2017
Seward Airport Improvements Profect (#Z548570000)
Poge 4

An alternatives analysis detailed the three alternatives: Alternative 1.1, reconstruct RW
13/31 (main RW) and raise it above the 100-year flood level; Alternative 2.2, upgrade RW
16/34 (crosswind RW) from an A-I facility to a B-ll facility; and Alternative 3, close RW 13-
31 and reconstruct RW 16-34.,

o}

Per the scoring criteria for this process, it was determined that Alternative 2.2 had
more advantages and less disadvantages than the other alternatives.

o The longer RW was kept as the ultimate condition in the airport master plan.
Impacts from flooding are a project concern,

O

Alternative 1.1 would require fill in the regulatory floodway that would significantly
raise the base flood elevation {BFE) for a 100-year flood event up to four feet in some
locations. Raising the BFE would: affect about 160 acres more than Alternative 2.2;
require a FIRM (flood insurance rate map) revision; require undergoing the LOMR
(letter of map revision) process; and increase flood insurance rates for those who
would be impacted.

Alternative 2.2 does not have as many flood impacts. It is a better fit than Alternative
1.1 and would impact about 22 acres, much less than the area potentially impacted
by Alternative 1.1.

Environmental impacts are a project concern.

o
o]
o]

Alternative 1.1 has impacts to the River’s navigability and fish habitat.

Alaska Department of Fish & Game {ADF&G) had stated it prefers Alternative 2.2.
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) must permit the least environmentally-
damaging alternative and had stated preference for Alternative 2.2.

Last winter, airport maintenance was difficult due to budget cuts.

o

o]

Although most DOT&PF funding is federal; maintenance work is state-funded, and
more budget cuts are expected.

The main RW by the river could have more flooding than Alternative 2.2, which is not
within flooding on the FIRM map. Alternative 2.2 would require less maintenance.

The project studied wind coverage at the airport.

o}

O

o]

The crosswind RW orientation wind coverage is preferred aside from occasional
winter winds when the long RW is preferable.

FAA requires 95% wind coverage; Alternative 2.2 has more than sufficient wind
coverage.

Tour operators were interviewed regarding wind. They primarily operate during
summer. Of the two operators that operate during winter, one did not have winter
wind issues, and the other sometimes has to wait out winter winds. Medivac
providers said that they send an ambulance from Anchorage. Seward’s hospital is
available for emergencies.

Runway Protection Zone (RPZ) issues are a safety concern.

o

For Alternative 1.1, the Alaska Railroad and Seward Highway are within the RPZ,
creating a safety hazard.

For Alternative 2.2, shifting the RW and RPZ removes this danger, and the Seward
Highway and Railroad penetrate the far corner of the RPZ and is much safer.
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SWG Meeting Summary, 10/2/2017
Seward Airport Improvements Profect (#Z548570000)
Poge 6

He is working on an approach with AOPA and wants a future opportunity to increase the RW
length to 4,000 ft.

Ms. Beaton said that the intention is to maintain an opportunity to increase the RW
length to 4,000 ft when demand increases to meet FAA requirements, and it will be shown
in the updated airport layout plan.

Mr. Perry further commented that, based on a previous business example, airplanes can
depart with average precision instruments. Getting into Seward requires more precision.
When pilots were stationed in Seward and flights originated there, they were able to fly
more often in the morning. When pilots were pulled out of Seward, ridership was
significant, but when it changed, the utilization and demand decreased. Ms. Beaton
clarified that the project must plan by the lack of demand information that is available.

Next Steps
Ms. Conlon noted that the next steps will include the following.

Alternative 2.2 will be carried forward as the preferred build alternative. An impacts
analysis will be conducted for Alternative 2.2 versus a No Build Alternative, which would
not meet the project’s purpose and need, Natural and environmental impacts, including
impacts to wetlands, will be assessed.

To expedite collecting public input, the environmental document will be released in
sections to the SWG. The first chapters will be available in approximately one month. The
project team aims to complete the environmental document by August of 2018.

The project will undergo the permitting process concurrently with design development.
The project will require a field survey and geotechnical work. The aerial survey was
previously completed.

The project is working through erosion protection.

The project will undergo a Right-of-Way acquisition and mapping process, which will take
approximately eight months and could impact the project schedule.

The project is estimated to go to bid in April 2019. The property acquisition process could
change this schedule. During this process, the project team will work with FAA to redesign
the circling approach and move visual approach slope indicators (VASIs) from the second
RW to the new RW.

A public meeting allowing comments from the SWG and public will be conducted once the
environmental document draft is available.

An environmental document is needed before property may be acquired.

The airport access road to the highway may change as part of the railroad permit effort.

The floor was opened for additional questions and comments, and none were given. It was
noted that community members expressed interest in pursuing the long RW, and the process to
select the best preferred alternative for the airport has been long and detailed.

Adjourn
The meeting concluded at approximately 2:30 p.m.
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Agency Scoping
Comments and Correspondence
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From: Boydston, Mark A (DOT)

Sent: Tuesday, January 24, 2017 11:00 AM

To: ak_fisheries@fws.gov; erin_knoll@fws.gov; Moore, Eric A (DNR); DNR, Parks OHA Review Compliance (DNR
sponsored); Ashton, William S (DEC); Lidren, Grant M (DEC); Heil, Cynthia L (DEC); Litchfield, Virginia P (DFG); Smith,
Jimmy C (CED); Lidren, Grant M (DEC); Davis, Tammy ] (DFG); Selinger, Jeff S (DFG); Kubitzj@akrr.com; Brian
Lindamood; Hcd.Anchorage@noaa.gov; jeanne.hanson@noaa.gov; dglenz@cityofseward.net; cepoa-rd-
kenai@usace.army.mil; MBest@kpb.us; bharris@kpb.us; ncarver@kpb.us; knoyes@kpb.us; tdearlove@kpb.us

Cc: Elliott, Brian A (DOT); Beaton, Barbara J (DOT); ak-airport-env@faa.gov

Subject: Seward Airport Improvements / Agency scoping letter

To All:

The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities Central Region is requesting comments on the proposed
Seward Airport Improvements project. See the attached Agency Scoping letter, Preliminary Environmental Research and
Figures 1 through 8. Comments are due no later than February 24, 2017.

Mark Boydston, Environmental Impact Analyst |1
Alaska Dept. of Transportation and Public Facilities
Preliminary Design and Environmental Section

P.O. Box 196900, Anchorage, Alaska 99519-6900
Phone 907.269.0524| Fax 907.243.6927
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Department of Transportation
and Public Facilities

DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES
PRELIMINARY DESIGN & ENVIRONMENTAL

PO Box 196900

Anchorage, Alaska 99519-6900
Main: 907.269.0542

Toll Free: 800.770.5263

TDD: 907.269.0473

January 24, 2017

Project: Seward Airport Improvements
Project No.: TBD /Z548570000

Re: Request for scoping comments

The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF), in cooperation with the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA), is soliciting comments and information on a proposed project which seeks to upgrade airport
facilities as well as protect the airport from further damage caused by recurrent flooding. The proposed project is located
within Section(s) 34-35, TIN, R1W and Sections 2-3, T1S., R1W, on USGS Quad Map Seward A-7, Seward Meridian;
Latitude 60.1307°N, Longitude -149.4188°W, in Seward, Alaska (Figure 1).

Purpose and Need

The Seward Airport is located within the floodplain of the Resurrection River; portions of the airport are within the
defined Floodway. The main runway (R/W 13/31) is located adjacent to the river and as a result, has been overtopped 18
times in the last 5 years (2011-2016), resulting in damage to all the airport facilities. Erosion from the river and regular
flood damage require a continued maintenance effort to keep the airport usable, especially R/W 13/31. The purpose of the
Seward Airport Improvements Project is to provide a reliable working airport that satisfies current FAA design standards
for an Aircraft Design Group (ADG) II facility and that also conforms to the state’s requirements for a Community Class
Airport. These improvements should meet the near term aviation demands as well as plan for future demand. Specifically
the airport needs to:

e Maintain a minimum R/W length of 3,300 feet, to accommodate current and near term aircraft including medevac

operations.

Meet the R/W width and taxiway (T/W) dimensional standards of ADG II.

Construct flood protection to prevent erosion damage from the 100-year flood.

Provide a minimum of 95% wind coverage for the ADG II aircraft; cross-winds.

Construct a R/W with sufficient bearing capacity to allow for occasional operations by larger aircraft such as

Beech 1900, Dash 8, and small charter type Business jets.

Provide reliable airport lighting for night operations.

e Mitigate approach obstructions and incompatible RPZ uses to the extent practicable. Accommodate the need for
aircraft owners to change out from floats to wheels

e Ensure the airport has sufficient service roads.

Alternatives under Evaluation
Airport Construction

Two build alternatives are under consideration. Both Alternative 1.1 and Alternative 2.2 satisfy the purpose and need
outlined above.
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Seward Airport Improvements Agency Scoping Letter January 24, 2017
Alternative 1.1 would include the following (see Figure 2):

e Reconstruct and raise R/W 13/31 above the 100-year flood level (up to 4 feet).

o Install riprap to protect the embankment. Adjust elevations of R/W 16/34 and T/Ws B and C to match the new
R/W 13/31 elevation.

¢ Eliminate or reconfigure T/Ws A, D, and E to comply with new FAA guidance.
Alternative 2.2 would include the following (see Figure 3):

e Close R/W 13/31 and discontinue maintenance.
Reconstruct and raise R/W 16/34 above the 100-year flood level (less than 1 foot). This includes shifting the R/W
east to provide the required R/W and T/W separation.

e Install riprap to protect the embankment from flooding.

e Relocate T/W B and adjust T/W F to match new R/W elevation.

Eliminate or reconfigure T/Ws A, C, D and E to comply with the new FAA guidance.

Both Alternatives would include the following:

Repave other airport surfaces as needed.

Install new airfield lighting and an electrical enclosure building.

Relocate, repair or replace navigational aids, and markings.

Construct service roads.

Install security fencing.

Property Acquisitions.

Construct an access road and ramp to accommodate float plane floats to wheel change-outs

Material Site
No material sites are included for evaluation as part of this project. There are commercial material sources available near
the project area.

Existing Site Conditions or Facilities

The State of Alaska owns and operates the Seward Airport, which includes a paved main R/W (R/W 13/31), a paved
secondary R/W (R/W 16/34), multiple T/Ws, and two aprons. R/W 13/31 is 4,533ft x75ft and R/W 16/34 is 2,289ft x
75ft. The Seward Airport primarily serves the City of Seward and residents in the area between Seward and Moose Pass.
Local residents use the airport for travel to Anchorage and Prince William Sound. Tour operators also use the airport as a
base for sightseeing tours of Kenai Fjords National Park via airplane and helicopter. There is no scheduled commercial
service. The number of operations at the airport is much higher in the summer than in the winter. Although Seward is
connected to other communities by rail, road and the marine highway, the airport provides essential access during medical
emergency or disaster situations when other access (single rail line and single highway) may be vulnerable.

Most of the Seward Airport is located within the floodplain of the Resurrection River Delta. A significant portion of R/W
13/31 lies within the floodway. The frequency with which R/W 13/31 has been overtopped by the Resurrection River has
increased significantly in recent years. These instances were limited initially to the fall, but they are now occurring in the
summer as well (June to November). Recent changes in channel morphology have rendered the existing riprap along the
eastern side of the R/W inadequate. Without raising this R/W and installing additional erosion protection, overtopping of
the R/W will continue and DOT&PF will keep pouring maintenance funds into the airport.

Recent testing of the main R/W embankment shows an insufficient bearing capacity to support large aircraft. Frequent
flooding is thought to have contributed to a weakened embankment under the pavement. As a result, use of the R/W has
been restricted to small aircraft with a weight of 12,500 Ibs or less.
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Location & Vicinity Map

Fairbanks

0 025 05 1 1.5
e e Viles

Location

Section: 34,35-2,3
Township: 1N - 1S Legend
Range: 1W

Meridian: Seward Seward Airport
USGS Quad: Seward A-7 I:I

State of Alaska
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Central Region

Seward Airport Improvements

Date: 12/12/16  Figure: 1
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